
Application of Pennsylvania-American Water Company for Acquisition of Assets of
The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport

66 Pa. C.S. $1329
Application Filing Checklist - WaterAVastewater

Docket No. A-2017-

19. Cost of Service.

c. If the seller is a municipal authority, provide a copy of the most recent
annual report filed with the Commonwealth's Department of Community
and Economic Development.

RESPONSE:

c. See enclosed annual report of The Municipal Authority for the City of
McKeesport filed with the Commonwealth's Department of Community
and Economic Development.

Appendix A-19-c



Mark C. Turnley
Cedified Public Accountant

June 30, 2016

PA Department of Community and Economic Development
Governor's Center for Local Government Services
Commonwealth Keystone Building, 4th Floor
Harrisburg, P A 17 120-0225

In accordance with Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development Regulations,
I have enclosed a certified copy of the 'Annual Report of Municipal Authorities 2015' for The Municipal
Authority of the City of McKeesport, along with a copy of the Audited Financial Statements.

lf you have any questions regarding the above information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

4"zo%,,27"-ry
Mark C. Turnley, CPA

Enclosure

Cc: Jeffrey Lape

American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants

Pennsylvania lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants

1000 gd Avenue
New Brighton, Pennsylvania 15066

(724) 384-1081
FAX (724) 384-8908
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ANNUAL REPORT OF MUNICIPAL AUTHORITIES 2015
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Department of Community and Economic Development
Governor's Center for Local Government Services

4th Floor Commonwealth Keystone Building
Harrisburg, Pennsylvani a 17 120-0225

1-888-223-6837
FAX#717-783-1402

Gurrent Information
Authority Name The Municipal Authority of the

City of McKeesport
Authority Address 100 Atlantic Avenue

McKeeport, Pa.

Zip Code 15132
Telephone Number 412-673-8276
Fax Number 412-673-4283
Name of Gontact Person Jeff Lape
E-Mail Address ilape@mck-macm.orq

024248

Gorrected Information

Title Financial Controller

Filing Status
1 Active X
2 lnactive
5 Terminated 

-

Authority Type
04 Sewer

Date Authority Organized (year) 1949 Date Authority Terminates (year) 2057
Fiscal Year Ends (month/day) 12131 Number of Employees

(tulltime equivalent)
(part time equivalent)

SIGNATURE MARK C. TURNLEY

TITLE CPA PHONE (724)384-1081

Geographical area served by authority
Municipal Name Countyr Name Municipal Name County Name
City of McKeesport Allegheny White Oak Borough Allegheny
Port Vue Borough Allegheny Liberty Borough Allegheny
East McKeesport Borough Allegheny Elizabeth Township Allegheny
Glassport Borough Allegheny Lincoln Borough Allegheny
Versailles Borough Allegheny North Versailles Borough Allegheny
Dravosburg Borough Allegheny City of Duquesne Allegheny



ASSETS

CURRENTASSETS

Cash

Investments

Accounts receivable

lnventories

Other cunent assets

TOTAL CURRENTASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS/TRUST FUNDS

DEFERRED CHARGES

FIXED ASSETS

Property, plant & equipment, at cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Construction work in progress

Otherfixed assets

NET FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll & withholdings

Accrued interest payable

Cunent portion of long-term debt

Other cunent liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM DEBT - less current portion

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND EQUIW

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Governmental grants

Other contributions

TOTAL CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

RETAINED EARNINGS

Reserved

Unreserved

660,679

3,405,902

472,699

91,435,797

(17,622,003\

656,696

't24.723

136,379

2,639,376

2,550

3,559,724

91,550,790

5,576,557

(13,658,644)

(8,082,087)

OPERATING AUTHORITIES BALANCE SHEET
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER,2015

024248

4.539.280

6,967,248

1 .708.1 05

73,813,794

g7,029,427

TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS

TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND EQUIW

95,1 1 0,51 4

(8,082,087)

87,028,427



SEWER
OPERATING AUTHORITIES

STATEMENT OF ]NCOME AND EXPENDITURES

(NOTE: lf more than one type of project is operated, complete a separate statement
for each type.)

024248

13,047,844

't3,047,844

6'15,062

720.799

2,368,937

5,531,367

9,236,165

3,811,679

1,221,731

12,309

1,234,040

3,349,738

1,030,301

4,380,039

(3,145,999)

665,680

(8,747,7671

(8,082,087)

OPERATING REVENUES

Sale of Services/user charges

Operating Grants - State

- Federal

Local government operating subsidies

lnterest income

Lease rental payments

Other operating revenues

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of sales and services

Administration - Salaries

- Other Costs

Depreciation

Other operating expenses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

oPERATTNG TNCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES

Capital Grants - State

- Federal

Proceeds of sale of fixed assets

Proceeds of borrowings

Other nonoperating revenues

TOTAL NONOPEMTING REVENUES

NONOPERATING EXPENSES

Debt service payments (interest only)

Constructions/extension of system

Major equipment purchased

Other nonoperating expenses

TOTAL NONOPERATING EXPENSES

TOTAL NONOPERATTNG REVENUE (LOSS)

NET INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

EXTRAORDTNARY GA|N (LOSS)

NET INCOME

RETAINED EARNINGS (beginning of year)

RETAINED EARNINGS (end of year)

665.680
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DEBT STATEMENT

OUTSTANDING BONDS AND NOTES
Listed below are all currently outstanding bond and note issues according to our files, excluding
bond issues redeemed or refunded and defeased. Please show the principal payments and make
any other necessary corrections and additions.

lssue
Type Bond (B) Date

Purpose Note (N) (mm/yy)

Original
Amount
of lssue

Outstanding Principal
Beginning Paid This Outstanding
ofYear Year at Year End

Final
Year

o4 N 11t15 2,051,467 14,891 2,036,576 2026
12t09 10,000,000 9,665,000 175,000 9,490,000 2039
12t10 25,000,000 13,780,000 20,000 13,760,000 2040
08/1 1 26,180,000 22,645,000 1,060,000 21 ,585,000 2030
06t11 qddo.ooo 546,934 @ 148,s62 2016
01t12 17,239,375 14,130,493 531,405 13,599,088 2043
01t12 5,990,000 5,550,000 185,000 5,365,000 2036
08112 4,650,000 4,640,000 5,000 4,635,000 2033
06/13 13,715,000 13,715,000
01114 6,410,000 6,335,000 30,000 6,305,000 2039

B
B

04
o4

B04
04

B-E-
o4
o4

2028
2ci|7

04
o4

o4
o4
o4

11115 1,132,796 1,132,796
09/15 21,650 21,650

7,218 1,125,578
21,650

Total bonds and notes outstanding

Capitalized lease obligations

Other debt

TOTAL OUTSTANDING DEBT

Minus assets held in debt service funds, bond reserve funds and

bond redemption funds

Minus lease rental payments receivable

CREDITS AGAINST DEBT

NET DEBT

91,786,854

198,452

91,985,306

5,576,557

86,408,749

5,576,557
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Mark C. Turnley
Ce rtifi ed P ub I ic Acco u ntant

To the Board of Directors
MunicipalAuthority of the Gity of McKeesport

I ndependent Auditor's Report

Report on Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport as
of and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted
my audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Authority's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

I

American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants
Pennsylvania lnstitute of Ceftified Public Accountants

1000 go Avenue
New Brighton, Pennsylvania 15066

(724) s84-1081
FAX (724) 384-8908



Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements refered to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Req u i red S u ppl ementary I nform ati on

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis on pages iii-xvi and the defined benefit pension plan information on pages 29-32
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basie financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to my inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I

do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sutficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other lnformation

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport's basic financial statements. The
supplementary information (statement of detail operating expenses) is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information (statement of detail operating expenses) is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
use to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In my opinion, the supplementary information (statement of detail operating expenses)
is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

%/4-ry1d
Mark C. Turnley, CPA

June 29, 2016
New Brighton, Pennsylvania



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended December 31 .2015 and 2014

This section of the Authority's annual financial report represents our discussion and
analysis of the Authority's financial performance during the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014. This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the
Authority's basic financial statements. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with the information provided in the Authority's financial
statements.

OPERATING AGREEMENTS

The Authority owns and operates three wastewater treatment facilities pursuant to
Agreements with each of the twelve communities it serves. The Authority has

Agreements to provide wastewater treatment services with the City of McKeesport, the
City of Duquesne, the Borough of Liberty, the Borough of Port Vue, the Borough of East
McKeesport, the Township of Elizabeth, the Borough of Glassport, the Borough of White
Oak, the Borough of Versailles, the Borough of Lincoln, the Borough of Dravosburg, and
the Township of North Versailles. The Authority's Board of Directors establishes rates
which are designed to recover the cost of providing services. The rates are based upon
the gallons of water used by the communities. The Authority bills the municipalities on a
quarterly basis for services provided to the communities' residents at the established rate.
The municipalities are responsible for setting a rate for customers within their
municipalities and for billing and collecting from those customers. The Authority began
conducting billing services for Versailles Borough in March of 2009 in addition to the
systems that it owns; McKeesport, Duquesne & Dravosburg.

The City of McKeesport sold its Collection System to the Authority effective January 1,

2009 under a lease purchase agreement. The acquisition of the sewer system included
more than 550,000 feet of sewer lines ranging in size from 6" to 42" and two pumping
stations. Since that date Authority personnel have performed routine maintenance and
repairs to the system. On November 8, 2010 the City of Duquesne sold its wastewater
treatment plant and collection system to the Authority for $3.8 million. The acquisition
added an additional163,700 feet of sewer lines and 557 manholes to the Authority's care.
A combined sewer overflow (CSO) long term control plan has been developed and is
waiting on DEP approval. ln January of 2011 the Authority purchased the Dravosburg
Wastewater Treatment Facility along with it corresponding collection system from the
Borough of Dravosburg for S330,000. The acquisition added an additional 47,500 feet of
sewer lines and one pump station. The CSO Long Term Control Plan has been developed,
the initial phase was recently approved by the DEP and is now awaiting the final
approval.

llt



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT
Management's Discussion"and Analysis

For the Years Ended December 31 .2015 and 2014

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented herein include only those of the Authority which is a
component unit of the City of McKeesport, Pennsylvania. The financial statements are
presented using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. They are designed to provide a broad overview of the Authority's frnances,
in a manner similar to a private-sector business. All of the Authority's activities are
reported in the statements except for activities associated with the pension fund because
those funds are not available to support the Authority's own programs.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Authority's assets and
liabilities, with the difference of the two reported as Net Position. Net Position is reported
as one ofthree categories: net investrnent in capital assets; restricted; or unrestricted.

The Statement of Revenues. Expenses. and Chanees in Net Position presents information
showing how the Authority's Net Position changed during the year. All of the changes in
Net Position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Revenues are recognized when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows
until future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected rates and earned but unused vacation leave).

These two financial statements report the Authority's Net Position and the changes in the
Net Position. Net Position, which represents the difference between assets and liabilities,
are one measure of the Authority's financial health, or financial position. Over time,
increases or decreases in the Authority's Net Position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether its financial position is improving or deteriorating.

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the information proved in these financial statements. The financial
statements and accompanying notes can be found in the financial section of this report.

lv



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended December 31 .2015 and 2014

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In2014 the Authority had a minimal increase of ten cents to their sewage processing rate
to $7.951I,000 gallons to cover increased operating costs, inflation, etc. Then again in
2015, the Authority had another minimal increase of ten cents, which brings the sewage
processing rate to $8.05/l,000gal1ons. No major rate increases are expected in the near
future, as the Authority had implemented such rate increases over the past few years to
compensate for the recent construction projects.

Bids for the Act 537 Plan Expansion Project were opened on March 7, 201I and fifteen
(15) contracts were awarded on May 26,2011.

The Authority was awarded PennVest funding on April 20,2011. The funding consisted
of 517,239,375 in the form of a grant and an equal amount in the form of a one (1.0)
percent thirty (30) year loan. These funds are to apply only to the two contracts pertaining
to the construction relating to the upgrade of the wastewater treatment facility itself. It
cannot be used for the upgrades to the pump stations or lines. The cost of these other
contracts not covered by Pennvest funds will be funded by the bond revenues. The
project is99% complete and is just awaiting project close out and final payments.

The Tapping Fee (Capacity fee) remained unchanged in 2015 at a rate of $1,750 per
Equivalent Dwelling Unit ("EDU"). An EDU, equivalent dwelling unit, is the average
amount of wastewater that each household in the service area discharges each day. The
Authority calculates an EDU tobe 236 gallons per day. During 2014, there were forty six
(46) new commercial taps purchased within the Authority's service area, and during 2015
there were eight (8) new commercial taps purchased within the Authority's service area,
this varies from year to year. The balance of cash accumulated from tapping fees (The
Tapping Fee Account), at December 31, 2014 was $430,758 and at December 31, 2015
was $43,482.The reason for the significant decrease in cash balance from 2014 to 2015
was to fund general operating costs throughout the year as provided by terms in the trust
indenture.

On December 3 I , 2015 , total assets and deferred outflow of resources were $87 ,028,427
and total liabilities were $95,110,514 yielding a net position of -$8,082,087. General
operations resulted in an increase in total Net Position of $665,680 for calendar year 2015
before the effects of prior period adjustments as discussed in Note 13 to the frnancial
statements.



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended December 31. 201,5 and 2014

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

For the year 2015,4.693 billion gallons of wastewater were treated at the Authority's
three (3) wastewater treatment facilities. Approximately Ll24 billion gallons of water
were consumed in 2015 by the Authority's customers and paid for by their user fees. By
comparison, 24yo of the wastewater treated was billable down from 28.5%o in 2014. The
remaining 3.569 billion gallons of wastewater, up from2.916 billion gallons from2014,
entered the system from rainwater, groundwater, streams and rivers, water line breaks,
firefrghting efforts, etc. The 2015 annual rainfall increased from the previous year;36.78
inches in20l4to 41.14 inches in 2015.

Total Operating Revenues were $13,047,844, a decrease of $266,185, or 2%o over 2014.

Operating Expenses were $9,236,165, an increase of $1,283,22I over 2014. The most
significant increase was depreciation expense increasing by $1,045,390 (from $1,323,547
in 2014 to $2,368,937 in 2015). Other significant increases included personnel costs,
professional services, and sewage plant costs.

vl



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following condensed financial statements and other selected information serve as

financial data and indicators to help the Authority manage, monitor, and plan.

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Current & Restricted Assets
Capital Assets - net of depreciation
Other Assets
Deferred Outflow of Resources
TOTAL ASSETS & DEFERRED OUTFLOW

OF RESOURCES

Current Liabilities
Long{erm Liabilities
Deferred Inflow of Resouces
TOTAL LIABILITIES & DEFERRED INFLOW

OF RESOURCES

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Debt Service
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses

NET OPERATING INCOME

Non-Operating Revenues
Non-Operating Expenses

NET NON.OPERATING

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

1213112015

$ 7,627,927
73,813,794

3,878,601
1,708,105

$ 3,559,724
91,437,745

1 13,045

$ 3,517,779 $
89,108,922

INCREASE
1213112014 <DECREASE>-5- e33s^o1o T_Jrzo?^og3t

93,963,753 (20,149,959)
2,758,051 1,120,550
1,512,821 195,284

$ 87,028,427 $ 108,069,635 $ (21,041,208)

1 13,045

$ 95,110,514 $ 92,626,701 $ 2,493,913

41,945
2.328,823

7,553

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

$ (14,730,364) $
5,576,557

6,819,924 $ (21,550,288)
5,569,004

2015 2014
@ -5-13p14p2s

9,236,165 7,952,944 1,283,221
$ 3,811,679 $ 5,361,095 $ (1,549,406)

$ 1,234,040 $ 255,237 $ 978,803
(4,380,039) (4,813,057) 433,018

$ (3,145,999) $ (4,557,820) $ 1,411,821

-9:_e65,999_ _$_99319!_ _$ (13?,!99t

1,071,720 3,054,006 (1,982,286)

_$__(8,082,9!ZI _i 1s,44283!_ _9_l2g,g1!lg21l

INCREASE
<DECREASE>-5---G6-JBst
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended December 31 ,2015 and 2014

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Overall, the Authority's financial condition remained strong in 2015. Most of the ten
service communities are up to date with their payments with the exception that they lag
one quarter behind due to the length of time it takes to get their consumption numbers
from the water authority. The addition of the McKeesport Collection System in 2009, the
Duquesne Wastewater Treatment Plant and System in 2010, and the Borough of
Dravosburg Wastewater Treatment Plant and System in 2011, as well as, the expressed
interest of at least three of the Authority's service communities to sell their systems to the
Authority, one of which has been in negotiations to sell, has greatly expanded the scope
of the Authority's influence and responsibilities and bodes well for the future success of
the Authority. Grant proceeds of $211,828 were received in2014 and$753,293 received
in 2015 from PENNVEST for the wastewater treatment facility project. The Authority
also received S468,438 in grant proceeds from FEMA/PEMA for damages incurred to the
sewage systems in 2013.

The following table shows the Authority's ability to generate net operating cash. Net cash
provided by operating activities is shown both in total dollars and as a percentage of
operating revenues. The effect of the addition of the 'Intergovemmental Agreement Fee'
starting in 2012 is reflected in the decrease in operating cash as a percentage of operating
revenues.

2015 2014 Variance
Total operating revenues 513,047,844 $ 13,314,029 -$266,185
Net cash provided by operations $6,145,215 $6,718,419 -573,204
Operating cash as a percentage of
operating revenues 47.I% 50.5% -3.4%

vlll



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended December 31. 2015 and 2014

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CAPITAL ASSETS

On December 31, 2015, the Authority had $73,813,794 invested in capital assets,
including land, infrastructure, buildings, plant and office machinery and equipment, and
vehicles net of depreciation. This amount represents a net decrease (including additions,
deletions and depreciation) of $20,149,959, or approximately 21.4%ofrom last year.

The Authority had approximately $1,514,377 in capital additions during the 2015 year,
mainly comprised of costs incurred for the Act 537 system improvements and upgrades
including WWTP expansion, pump station construction, sanitary sewer construction and
force main construction.

A summary of the Authority's capital assets net of accumulated depreciation for the past
two years is as follows:

2015
INCREASE

2014 <DECREASE>
Land
Infrastructure
Buildings
Plant Machinery & Equipment
Office Machinery & Equipment
Vehicles and Equipment

Accumulated Depreciation

Construction in Progress

-5- 61J32 -5- 61J32 T -
33,487,620 33,502,793 (15,173)
33,723,580 10,165,226 23,558,354
22,627,410

126,615
7,955,983 14,671,427

143,791 (17,176)
1 ,409,440 1,354,294 55,146

$ 91,435,797 $ 53,183,219 $ 38,252,578
(17,622,003\ (17,485,167\ (136,836)

$ 73,813,794 $ 35,698,052 $ ga,r 15,742

- 

58,265,701
$ 73,813,794 $ 93,963,753

(58,265,701)
$ (20,14e,ese)

ln calendar year 2015, the Authority contracted for and completed an updated appraisal
of the acquisition cost of all of its plant assets as a result of significant plant expansion
and renovation over the past 7 years. As a result of this updated appraisal, asset
categories as shown on the statement of next position, in some instances, changed
significantly from calendar year 2014 to calendar year 2015 as a result of capitalizing
prior year construction in progress. This updated appraisal determined that certain prior
year assets (structures and equipment) had been completely renovated or replaced and
accordingly had to be removed from the Authority's cost value for its property, plant and
equipment.

IX



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF McKEESPORT
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended December 31. 2015 and 2014

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

The corresponding reduction is reflected as part of the Authority's prior period
adjustments as stated on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.
Depreciation expense increased significantly in calendar year 2015 as a result of the
additional capitalization on assets formerly shown as construction in progress.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of December 3I, 2015, the Authority had total long-term debt outstanding of
562,578,823. The Authority's debt obligations are comprised of 1) seven sewer revenue
bonds, 2) one sewer revenue note, 3) three PENNVEST notes, 4) one note agreement
with First Commonwealth Bank, md 5) three capital lease obligations with PNC
Equipment Finance.

In December of 2009, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series
of 2009 in the amount of $10,000,000 for the purpose of l) the design and construction of
capital projects, 2) acquisition of facilities required for proper operation and maintenance
of the Authority wastewater conveyance and treatment system, 3) funding a debt service
reserve fund, and 4) pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in
denominations of S5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15

at rates ranging between 3.0 and 5.75%. The bonds are scheduled to mature December
15, 2039 . The remaining principal balance on the bond issue as of December 3 I , 201 5 is
$9,490,000.

In December of 2010, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series
of 2010 under the terms of a Trust Indenture dated December 28, 2010, by and between
the Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the
amount of $25,000,000. The purpose of the bond issue was for 1) the design and
construction of capital projects, 2) funding a debt service reserve fund, and 3) paying the
costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in denominations of $5.000 with
interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15. In January of 2013, Sewer
Revenue Bonds - Series of 2013 were issued for the purpose of advance refunding a

portion ($11,215,000) of Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2010, leaving a balance at
December 31, 2015 of $13,760,000. Interest rates range between 2.5 and 5.0% and the
bonds are scheduled to mature on December 15.2041.
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CAPITAL ASSET Al\D DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

DEBT ADMINISTRATION: (Continued)

In August of 2011, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of
20ll under the terms of a Trust lndenture dated August 31, 2011, by and between the
Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount
of $26, I 80,000. The purpose of the bond issue was for I ) prepaying certain outstanding
loans (capital leases) between the City of McKeesport and the Authority, 2) funding a

debt service reserve fund, and 3) pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were
issued in denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and
December 15. ln January of 2013, Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2013 were issued
for the pu{pose of advance refunding a portion ($500,000) of Sewer Revenue Bonds -
Series of 2011, leaving a balance at December 31, 2015 of $21,585,000. Interest rates
range between 2.0 and 4.25% and the bonds are scheduled to mature on December 15,

2030.

In January of 2012, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of
2012 under the terms of a Trust Indenture dated January 5, 2012, by and between the
Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount
of $5,990,000. The purpose of the bond issue was for l) cunently refunding the
Authority's outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2006, and2) paying the costs
of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in denominations of $5,000 with
interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15 at rates ranging between 1.00
and 3.00%. The bonds provide for early redemption options as detailed in the official
statement of issue. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15. 2036. The
remaining principal balance on the bond issue as of December 31, 2015 is $5,365,000.

In July of 2012, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series B of
2012 under the terms of a Trust Indenture dated August23,2012,by and between the
Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount
of $4,650,000. The purpose of the bond issue was for 1) advance refunding a portion of
the Authority's outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2008 and 2) paying the
costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in denominations of $5.000 with
interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15 at rates ranging between 1.00
and 3.45%o. The bonds provide for early redemption options as detailed in the official
statement of issue. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15. 2033. The
remaining principal balance on the bond issue as of December 31, 2015 is 54,635,000.
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION: (Continued)

In January of 2013, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of
2013 under the terms of a Trust Indenture dated January 16,2013, by and between the
Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount
of $13,715,000. The purpose of the bond issue was for l) advance refunding a portion of
the Authority's outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2010, 2) advance
refunding a portion of the Authority's outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series of 2011,
and 3) paying the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in
denominations of S5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15
at an interest rate of 4.00%. The bonds provide for early redemption options as detailed
in the official statement of issue. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15,204I.
The remaining principal balance on the bond issue as of December 31, 2015 is
s13,715,000.

ln January of 2014, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of
2014 under the terms of a Trust lndenture dated February 19,2014,by and between the
Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount
of $6,410,000. The purpose of the bond issue was for l) currently refunding the
Authority's outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2008, 2) fund construction
and/or acquisition of capital additions, and 3) paying the costs of issuance on the bonds.
The bonds were issued in denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually
June 15 and December 15 at interest rates ranging between 1.0% and 4.65%. The bonds
provide for early redemption options as detailed in the official statement of issue. The
bonds are scheduled to mature December 15,2039. The remaining principal balance on
the bond issue as of December 31,2015 is $6,305,000.

ln June of 2011, the Authority issued Sewer Revenue Note - Series of 2011 to PNC Bank
in the amount of $5,000,000. The Note was subsequently amended in December of 201 I
to increase the amount to $10,000,000. The purpose of the Note was to pay for the costs
of the Authority's Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP) expansion costs in advance of
receiving permanent financing from the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority
(see Note 11). The Note bears interest at a variable rate (currently 2.4375%) equal to
75o/o of the Bank's Prime Rate. As of December 31,2015, the outstanding balance on
this Note obligation is $148,962.
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION: (Continued)

On January 5, 2012, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST)
awarded the Authority a grant of $17,239,375 and an additional amount of $17,239,375 n
the form ofa 30 year loan at l%o interest to cover the general and electrical contracts for
the wastewater treatment facility at 100 Atlantic Ave. in McKeesport, PA. The Authority
has drawn down $15,015,205 on the loan as of December 31, 2015. The terms of the note
agreement call for the current monthly payment of $55,448.63 at an interest rate of I%o.

The note is scheduled to mature inNovember of 2038. As of December 31.2015. the
outstanding balance on this loan obligation is S13,599,088.

In November of 2015, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure lnvestment Authority (PENNVEST)
entered into an assumption agreement with the Municipal Authority of the City of
McKeesport to assume the outstanding balance of an existing PENNVEST loan held by the
City of McKeesport in the amount of $2,051,467.42. The terms of the note agreement call
for the monthly payment of $17,780.19 at an interest rate of I.69% scheduled to mature on
May 1, 2026. The note is secured by the gross receipts of the Authority and guaranteed by
the City of McKeesport. As of December 31, 2015, the outstanding balance on this loan
obligation is $2,036,576.

In November of 2015, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST)
entered into an assumption agreement with the Municipal Authority of the City of
McKeesport to assume the outstanding balance of an existing PENNVEST loan held by the
City of McKeesport in the amount of $I,132,795.66. The terms of the note agreement call
for the monthly payment of $8,223.11 at an interest rate of 1.065% scheduled to mature on
February 1,2028. The note is secured by the gross receipts of the Authority and guaranteed
by the City of McKeesport. As of December3l,2015, the outstanding balance on this loan
obligation is $1, 125,578.

In September of 2015, the Authority entered into a promissory note agreement with First
Commonwealth Bank for the purchase of a 2015 Chewolet Cutaway for 521,650. The
terms of the note call for 2 annual payments of $11,312.28 at an annual interest rate of
2.94%. The remaining principal balance on the lease as of Decemb er 31, 2015 is $21,650
and the lease is scheduled to expire in September of 2017.
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION: (Continued)

In November of 2012, the Authority entered into a capital lease agreement with PNC
Equipment Finance for the purchase of a Backhoe and a Dump Truck for $161,829. The
terms of the lease call for 5 annual payments of $33,854.24 at an annual interest rate of
2.3%. The lease is scheduled to expire in November of 2016. The remaining principal
balance on the lease as of December 31,2015 is $33,093.

In March of 2014, the Authority entered into a capital lease agreement with PNC
Equipment Finance for the purchase of a2014 Vactor Truck for $352,801. The terms of
the lease call for 12 quarterly payments of $30,242.80 at an annual interest rate of 2.8%.
The lease is scheduled to expire in March of 2017. The remaining balance on the lease as
of December 31, 2015 is $149,249.

In May of 2014, the Authority entered into a capital lease agreement with PNC
Equipment Finance for the purchase of a 2013 Chevrolet Silverado for 823,917. The
terms of the lease call for 3 annual payments of S8,309.51 at an annual interest rate of
2.1%. The lease is scheduled to expire in May of 2017. The remaining balance on the
lease as of Decemb er 31, 2015 is $ I 6, I I 0.

The Authority is scheduled to make principal and interest payments on their total debt of
approximately 56,257,823 during the 2016 calendar year. The principal and interest
payments to be paid in 2015 do not include Sewer Revenue Note, Series of 2011.

ST]BSEQUENT EVENT

The Authority has had one major subsequent event since December 31,2015 that would
affect the financial statements. The Authority purchased the Port Vue Collection system
in April of 2016 for S1,400,000 with an upfront payment of $300,000 due at closing and
ten annual payments of $110,000 through 2026. The Authority will now be responsible
for billing the Port Vue customers and collecting the payments directly, and also to
maintain the collection system, which includes both sanitary and storm lines and one
pump station.
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GENERAL TRENDS AI\D SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Population in the Authority's service area continues to remain fairly constant, with a
decrease in the population in the City of McKeesport and the City of Duquesne being
offset by increases in other communities such as White Oak Borough, North Versailles
Township and Elizabeth Township. It has been estimated that the population in the
service area will increase at arate of 90 persons per year for the next five years.

Throughout the year the Authority continued to work with the PA Department of
Environmental Protection to implement its Act 537 Sewage Facility Plan and Combined
Sewer Overflow (CSO) Long Term Control Plan. These plans were approved in July of
2007. The project design work was completed and submitted to the PA Department of
Environmental Protection for review in July of 2009 and approved in July of 2010.
Fifteen construction projects were put out for bid in February of 2011 and awarded in
May. The project involves significant new treatment processes, pumping stations &
interceptor lines with an associated capital cost of approximately sixty-two (62.5) million
dollars.

In order to prevent a huge increase in the sewer rates the Authority has chosen to issue a
series of bonds at a rate of one per year. By doing this the Authority has been able to step
the necessaryrate increases over aperiod of several years. To do this, a ten (10) million
dollar bond was issued in 2009 and the rates were increased by $0.74i1000 gallons, or
20.5yo, a fourteen (14) million dollar bond was issued in 2010 which increased the rates
$0.86/1000 gallons, or 19.4Yo, a twenty-five (25) million dollar bond was issued in 20l l
raising the rates $0.80/1000 gallons, or I5.l%o, two bonds were issued in2012 totaling
eleven (ll) million dollars with no rate increase, and finally a fourteen (14) million
dollar bond was issued in 2013 raising the rates $ I .75ll 000 gallons, or 28%o. ln 2014 the
Authority issued a $6.4 million dollar bond to refund the Authority's outstanding Sewer
Revenue Bonds Series of 2008, raising rates $0.10/1000 gallons, or l%o, due to increased
utility costs for operation of the new treatment plant processes that have gone online. In
2015 the Authority did not issue any new debt, but did have a minimal rate increase of
$0.10/1000 gallons, or I%o. The project is 99% complete, just awaiting project closeout
and final payments. The Authority expects future rate increases to be minimal, lo/o or
lower over the next few vears.
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GENERAL TRENDS Al\D SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

The US Army Corps of Engineers (COE) is undergoing a project to raise the water level
in the Monongahela River which will significantly impact the Authority's Combine
Sewer Overflow (CSO) outfall structures. As a result the federal govemment funded the
relocation of most of the CSO structures. Construction for Phase I of the project was
completed ln'2007 and phase (II) of the project was completed in 2010. One remaining
outfall, Evans Avenue, remains to be raised to complete the project, however funding was
not available in 2011 and currently still remains unfunded. The Authority's new outfall
structures have greatly reduced the amount of river water that flows back through the
pipes and into the sewer lines. This in return has reduced the costs associated with
treating unnecessary water.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the Authority's finances and to show the Board of Directors'
accountability for the money they administer on behalf of the customers of the Municipal
Authority of the City of McKeesport. If you have questions about this report or wish to
request additional financial information, please contact the Authority offices at
100 Atlantic Avenue, McKeesport, PA 15132, (412)-673-9701.
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EXHIBIT A

THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31.

2015 2014
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Eouivalents - Restricted
Sewage Service Receivable
Delinquent Sewage Service Receivable - City of McKeesport
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accrued Sewage Service (Unbilled)
Prepaid Intergovernmental Fees
Deposits

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Investments

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

pRopERTY, PLANT AND EQUTPMENT (NOTE 3):
Land
Infrastructure and Site lmprovements
Buildings and Building lmprovements
Plant Machinery and Equipment
Office Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles and Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Construction in Progress
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred Interest on Advance Refunding
Deferred Outflow of Resources - Pension

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

$ 60s,230
55,449

1,757,902
192,458

1.455.542
469,699

3,000

$ 1,440,931
70,363

1,771,506
192,458

(287,213)
1,078,300

3,000
$ 4,539,280 $ 4,269,345

$ 61,132
33,502,793
10,165,226
7,955,983

143,791
1.354.294

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
1

$ 6,967,248 $ 8,323,716
$ 6,967,248 $ 8,323,716

$ 61 ,132
33,487,620
33,723,580
22,627,410

126,615
1.409.440

$ 91 ,435,797 $ 53,1 83,219
(17,622,003) (17,485,167)

$ 73,813,794 $ 35,698,052
- 58,265,701-5- ?3.slq?df T $'e6q?53

$ 85,320,322 $ 106,556,814

$ 1,450,671
257,434

$ 1,708,105

$ 1,512,821

$ 1,512,821

$ 87,028,427 $ 108,069,635



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORIW OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31.
(coNTTNUED)

201s

EXHIBIT A

2014

LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable
Retainage Payable
Accrued Payroll and Taxes
Sewage Service Deposits
Accrued Interest
Capital Leases - Current Portion
Current Portion of Bonds and Notes Payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG.TERM LIABILITIES:
Bonds Payable - Long Term Portion (Net)
Pennvest Loan Payable
Sewer Revenue Note 201 1

First Commonwealth Note Payable
Capital Leases - Long Term Portion
Net OPEB Liability
Net Pension Liability
Compensated Absences

TOTAL LONG.TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES:
Deferred Inflow of Resources - Pension

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in CapitalAssets
Restricted for Debt Service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

AND NET POSITION

$ 313,251
343,445
124,723

2,550
136,379
160,202

2,479,'t74
$ 3,559,724

$ 349,186
1,286,154

103,698
2,550

137,801
163,390

1,475,000
$ 3,517,779

$ 74,235,443
13,377,200

546,934

198,453
602,595

148,297

$ 72,733,305
15,961,855

10,825
38,250

759,290
1,769,869

164,351

$ (8,082,087) $ 15,42,934

$ 87,028,427 $108,069,635

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
2

$ 91,437,745 $ 89,108,922
$ 94,997,469 $ 92,626,701

$ 113,045 $ -
T- 113^045--
$ 95,110,514 $ 92,626,701

$ (14,730,364) $ 6,819,924
5,576,557 5,569,004
1,071,720 3,054,006



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.

2015

EXHIBIT B

2014
OPERATING REVENUES

Sewage Treatment Services
Sludge Hauling
Tap Fees and Permits
Miscellaneous

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Costs
Professional Services
Sewage Plant Costs
Other General and Administrative
Bad Debt Expense
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING INCOME BEFORE NON.OPERATING
REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NON.OPERATING REVENUE AND (EXPENSE)

Interest lncome
PENNVEST Grant Proceeds
FEMA Grant Proceeds
Intergovernmental Agreem ent Fee
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Bond lssue Costs
Gain <Loss> on Disposalof Fixed Assets

TOTAL NON-OPERATTNG REVENUE AND (EXPENSE)

INCREASE <DECREASE> IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION - JANUARY 1.

Prior Period Adjustment

NET POSITION. DECEMBER 31,

$ 13,047,84 $ 13,314,029

$ 12,901,104
101,813

12,250
32,677

$ 13,068,117
110,683
80,500
54,729

$ 4,126,408
328,759

1,789,156
392,040
230,865

2,368,937

$ 9,236,165

$ 3,811,679

$ 4,023,979
255,492

1,687,267
375,446
287,213

1,323,547

$ 7,952,94

$ 5,361,085

$ 12,309
753,293
468,438

(1,030,301)
(3,34e,738)

$ (3,145,999)

$ ees,ego

15,442,934

(24j90,701)

$ 12,219
211,828

(1,020,100)
(3,568,314)

(224,643)
31,190

$ (4,557,820)

$ 803,265

14,639,669

$ (8,082,087) $ 15,42,934

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
3



EXHIBIT C

THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORIW OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.

2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received ftom Sewage Billings
Cash Paid to Employees for Salaries and Benefits
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(lncrease) Decrease in Restricted Assets
Proceeds from Bond lssues
Proceeds from Sewer Revenue Note
Proceeds from Pennvest Loan
Grant Proceeds
Proceeds from Capital Leases
Bond lssue Costs
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt
Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt
Purchase of Property and Equipment (Net of Refund)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental Agreement Fee

Net Cash (Used for) Non Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income Received

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JANUARY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - DECEMBER 31

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERAT]NG ACTIVITIES
Net Operating Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation
Bad Debt Expense

Change in Current Assets and Liabilities:
(lncrease) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(lncrease) Decrease in Deferred Outffow of Resources - Pension
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Sewage Service Deposits
Increase (Decrease) in Net OPEB Obligation
lncrease (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflow of Resources - Pension
Increase (Decrease) in Accumulated Compensated Absences

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

2014

$ 12,166,128 $ 12.807,740
(4,03s,54s) (3,814,020)
(1,981,364) (2,275,301)

$ 6,14s,215 $ 6,718,419

$ 1,356,468

1,140,530
753,293

1,221,731
21,650

(3,730,407)
(3,271,149)
(3,000,255)

$ (5,508,139)

$ (1,500,000)
$ (1,500,000)

$ 12,309

$ 1,801,915
6,410,000

920,983
211,828
211,828
376,718

(224,643)
(8,251,540)
(3,4s2,082)
(3,294,056)

$ (5,32e,04s)

$ (1,020,100)

$ (1,020,100)

$
$ 12,309 | 12,220

(850,615) $ 381 ,490

1.511.294 1,129,804

_!____98929_ _$_1,!l_1,291_

$ 3,811,679

2,368,937
230,865

(499,2e7)
(257,434)

(10,523)
37,079

156,695
1 94,169
1 13,045

$ 5,361,085

1,323,547
287,213

(502,889)

42,904
11,328
(3,400)

194,746

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport (the Authority) is a public corporation of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, organized and existing under the Municipality Authorities Act of 1945. The
Act was amended by the Act 22 of June 19,2OO1 (P.L.287, No. 22). The Council of the City of McKeesport
(the City) created the Authority on November 29, 1949 under an order from the Sanitary Water Board of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Authority was created for a period of 50 years to end December 5,
1999, and was subsequently extended through December 5,2057. The Authority was created for the
purpose of acquiring, holding, constructing, improving, maintaining and operating, owning and leasing
(either in capacity as lessor or lessee) certain projects. These projects include sewers, sewer systems or
parts thereof, sewage treatment works, also including the acquisition of land for sewage treatment works
and pumping stations, and all other necessary facilities and apparatus that the Board of Directors may
authorize as necessary for the project. The Authority provides waste collection and treatment services,
under agreement, for the following municipalities:

City of McKeesport
Port Vue Borough
East McKeesport Borough
Glassport Borough
Versailles Borough
City of Duquesne

White Oak Borough
Liberty Borough
Elizabeth Authority
Lincoln Borough
North Versailles Borough
Dravosburg Borough

Per the terms of these agreements, the Authority is the provider of sewage treatment and disposal service
to the above municipalities, and these municipalities have agreed to construct and maintain such sewers,
interceptors and pumping stations as is necessary to bring the sewage and industrial waste to a point where
it flows into the interceptors of the Authority.

The five-members of the Authority Board of Directors are appointed by the members of Council of the City of
McKeesport. Revenue or other cash received must be disbursed in accordance with provisions of the Trust
Indentures dated October 1,2006, as amended and supplemented by the First Supplemental Trust
fndenture dated as of October 2,2008, as amended and supplemented by the Second Supplemental Trust
fndenture dated as of December 1,2009, as amended and supplemented by the Third Supplemental Trust
fndenture dated as of December 28,2010, as amended and supplemented by the Fourth Supplemental
Trust fndenture dated August 31,2011, as amended and supplemented bythe Fifth Supplemental Trust
fndenture dated January 5, 2012, as amended and supplemented by the Sixth Supplemental Trust
fndenture dated August 23, 2012, as amended and supplemented by the Seventh Supplemental Trust
fndenture dated January 16,2013, and as amended and supplemented by the Eighth Supplemental Trust
fndenture dated February 19, 2014 by and between the Authority and the Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company as trustee, securing the Sewer Revenue Bonds Series of 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 20128, 2013
and 2014 respectively.

The financial statement of the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental 'enterprise
(proprietary) funds'. The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income,
changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles
applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its
pronouncements (Statements and lnterpretations). During 2015, the Authority adopted the provisions of
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 68, 'Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions'.



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORIW OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Gontinued)

The more significant accounting policies
below.

REPORTING ENTIW

established in GAAP and used by the Authority are discussed

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other organizations that are
included to ensure the financial statements are not misleading. The primary govemment of the Municipal
Authority of the City of McKeesport consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not
legally separate from the Authority. As defined by GASB No. 14, component units are legally separate
entities that included in the Authority's reporting entity because of the significance of their operating or
financial relationships with the Authority. Based on the application of these criteria, the Municipal Authority of
the City of McKeesport has no component units.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund since its operations are financed and operated in a
manner similar to the private sector. The Authority utilizes the accrual method of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when eamed rather than when cash is received, and expenses are
recognized when an obligation is incuned rather than when cash is actually paid.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand
deposit accounts, and any other short-term highly liquid assets with original maturity terms of less than three
months. Cash and cash equivalents - restricted represents the balance of PNC Sewer Revenue Note funds
(Note 4) and funds received from the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (Note 4) restricted for
the Authority's Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP) expansion project.

INVESTMENTS

The Municipal Authorities Act authorizes the Authority to invest in the following:

l. U.S. Treasury Bills
ll. Short-term obligation of the U.S. Govemment or its agencies or

instrumentalities
lll. Deposits in savings accounts, time deposits and share accounts of

institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC), Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation and
National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund (NCUSIF)

lV. Obligations of the United States of America, the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania or any political subdivision of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, or any of their agencies or instrumentalities backed by
the full faith and credit of the governmental units

V. Shares of an investment company registered under the lnvestment
Company Act of 1940, and registered under the Securities Act of
1933

Vl. Any investment authorized by 20 Pa. C.S. Ch. 73 relating to
fiduciaries investments.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS (Continued)

In addition, the Board of Directors can invest the Authority's sinking funds as authorized for local
governments in the Local government Unit Debt Act, 53 Pa.C.S. 8224. Investment of the Authority's
restricted assets are made pursuant to and restricted by the aforementioned Trust Indentures securing the
Sewer Revenue Bonds Series of 2009, 2010,2011,2012,20128,2013, and 2014. Investments for 2015
and 2014 (See Restricted Assets) include Dreyfus Government cash management agency fund shares,
certificates of deposit, corporate notes, fixed income investments with the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation, Federal Farm Credit Bank, and Federal National Mortgage Association. Investments are
stated at fair value. The Authority is in compliance with these restrictions as of December 31, 2015 and
2014.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

In accordance with the provisions of the aforementioned Trust lndentures, by and between the Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company and the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport, which secure the
Authority's Sewer Revenue Bonds, the Authority is obligated to restrict certain funds to pay for construction
related expenditures and to meet debt service requirements. These funds are reflected in Exhibit A as
'restricted assets' and are further detailed in Note 2.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at net realizable value. Receivables are mainly comprised of billed and
unbilled sewage services rendered to the participating municipalities as herein described in Note 1.

Management utilizes the allowance method for charging bad debt expense to operations for customer
accounts receivable. Management estimated a provision for bad debts of $0 and $287,213 respectively for
the years ended December 31,2015 and2O14.

INVENTORY

The Authority does not maintain a physical inventory of materials, chemicals, and other supplies.
Management estimates that inventory values during the year are minimal for cost control purposes.
Accordingly, management is of the opinion that any value that existed at December 31,2015 and 2014 would
not materially affect the financial position of the Authority.

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
the Authority's management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

UNEARNED REVENUE

Unearned revenue arises when the Authority receives resources before it has legal claim to them. This
occurs when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent
periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the Authority has a legal claim to the
resources, the unearned revenue liability is removed and revenue is recognized.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

LONG.TERM DEBT FINANCING COSTS

Bond issuance costs are recorded as expenditures in the financial statements in the year paid. During the
2014 cafendat yeat, the Authority paid $224,643 in bond issuance costs as reflected on the statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in net position (Exhibit B).

PROPERW. PLANT. AND EQUIPMENT

The Authority records property, plant and equipment purchases at cost. Property, plant and equipment
include major befterments that extend the economic useful life of the assets affected. The Authorig
maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000. Routine repair and maintenance costs are charged to
operations as incurred. Depreciation expense is calculated on a straightline basis over the estimated useful
life of the asset as follows:

Buildings and lmprovements 20-40 Years

Infrastructure
Site lmprovements

Machinery and Equipment
Office Equipment
Vehicles

WWTP Expansion Project
Pum p Stations Construction

Rotary Press Project
River Crossing Force Main

32,020j82
17,575,682

867,570
1,793,580

-S's8265,?01

50 Years
5-30 Years

5-20 Years
5-15 Years

8 Years

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31,2015 and 2014 was $2,368,937 and $1,323,547
respectively. Construction in progress as of December 31, 2014 was comprised of the following Authority
projects:

1213112014

Act 537 Sptem lmprovements Project:
Engineering and Other Professional Fees $ 4,502,330

EastMest Shore Sanitary Sewer Construction 1,506,357

NET POSITION

Net Position is classified into three categories according to external donor or legal restrictions or
availability of assets to satisfy Authority obligations. Net Position is classified as follows:

o Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component of Net Position consists of capital assets net
of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the outstanding balances of debt that is attributable
to the acquisition, construction and improvement of the capital assets, plus deferred outflows of
resources less deferred inflows of resources related to those assets.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NET POSITION (Gontinued)

r Restricted Net Position - This component of Net Position consists of restricted assets reduced by
liabilities and deferred inflows related to those assets.

r Unrestricted - Consists of all other Net Position that does not meet the definition of 'restricted'or
'net investment in capital assets'.

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources (net
position), the Authority's policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources and then toward
unrestricted resources.

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets and liabilities, the statement of net position and/or the balance sheet will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred outflows and/or inflows of resources. These separate financial
statement elements represent a decrease and/or increase in net position that applies to a future period and so
will not be recognized as an outflow and/or inflow of resources (expense/expenditure or income/revenue) in
the cunent period.

OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the Authority.
For the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport, these revenues are sewer user charges, sludge
hauling fees, tap-in fees, and other miscellaneous revenues generated from operating activities. Operating
expenses are the necessary costs incurred to operate the Authority. Non-operating revenues of the
Authority consist of grant and interest revenue. Non-operating expenses consist of interest on long-term
debt and bond issuance cost expense.

NOTE 2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

CASH DEPOSITS:

At December 31,2015 and2014, the Authority had the following bank balances and carrying value on its'
cash and cash equivalent accounts:

-- December 31, 2015 --Bank Carrying
Balance Value

-- December 31,2014 --Bank Carrying
Balance Value

Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Certificates of Deposit
(Shown as part of

Restricted Assets)

$ 639,227 $ 660,679 $ 1,388,096 $ 1,511,294

4,655,000 4,655,000
$ 6,043,096 $ 6,166,294$ 4,468,919 $ 4,490,371
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NOTE 2 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

CASH DEPOSITS: (Continued)

The difference between the bank balance and the carrying value represents reconciling items such as
deposits in transit and outstanding checks. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) coverage
threshold for government accounts is $250,000 per official custodian. This coverage includes checking
and savings accounts, money market deposit accounts, and certificates of deposit.

CustodialCredit Risk:

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority's deposits may not be
returned to it. The Authority does not have a separate policy for custodial credit risk in addition to the
requirements of State Law. As of December 31,2015 and 2014, $389,227 and $1,138,096 respectively of
the Authority's bank balance totals are exposed to custodial credit risk as these amounts represent
uninsured deposits collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or by its trust
department or agent, but not in the Authority's name. In accordance with Act Number 72-1971 Session of
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the aforementioned deposits, in excess of $250,000, are collateralized
by securities pledged to a pooled public funds account with the Federal Reserve System.

INVESTMENTS:

The fair value and maturity term of the Authority's investments as of December 31,2015 and 2014 is as
follows:

-..- December 31,2015

Dreyfus Cash Mgt Funds
U.S. Agency Fixed Income

No Stated
Fair Value Maturity

T 51,116 T- 5trr6
3,085,780 3,085,780

$ 3,085,7803,137,556 51,776

0-1 Years

--- December 31,2014

Fair Value
No Stated
Maturity 0-l Years

$ 1'o2o'442 $ 
2,648,27;

Investments classified as U.S. Agencies are securities of agencies of the U.S. Government that have an
implied but not explicit guarantee.

@:
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The Authority has no formal investment policy that limits its investment choices based on credit ratings by
nationaffy recognized rating organizations. As of December 31 , 2015 and 2014, investments in U.S.
Agencies and Corporate Notes have received an 'AA+'rating from Standard & Poors.

Dreyfus Cash Mgt Funds
U.S. Agency Fixed Income

$ 1,020,442
2,648,274

10
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NOTE 2 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Gontinued)

INVESTM ENTS: (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk:

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Authority's investments in Dreyfus Cash Management Agency Funds
are not exposed to custodial credit risk because their existence is not evidenced by securities that exist in
physical or book entry form. The Authority does not have a formal investment policy for custodial credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk:

The Authority does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The Authority's
certificate of deposit, corporate note, and U.S. Agency fixed income security investments have maturity
terms of less than 'l year.

Concentration of Credit Risk:

The Authority places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer.

The Authority's restricted assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are comprised of the following:

Construction Funds
Clearing Fund
Debt Service Funds

1213112015 12t31t2014-5-lp-6876z- Trrs-Z6,ot
1,909 1,909

5,576,557 5,569,004
$ 6,967,248 $ 8,323,716

-:

11
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 3. PROPERW. PLANT. AND EQUIPMENT

The following comprises the changes to the Authority's property, plant, and equipment account during 2015
and2014:

Balance Balance
11112015 Additions Deletions 1213112015

T- 61J32 -S - -S - -5- 
61J32

33,502,793 3,184,263 (3,199,436) 33,487,620
10,165,226 23,558,354 - 33,723,580
7,955,983 14,671,427 - 22,627,4',t0

143,791 19,285 (36,461) 126,615
1,354,294 55,146 

- 

1,409,440
$ 53,183,219 $ 41,488,475 $ (3,235,897) $ 9r,435,797

(17,485,167) (2,368,937) 2,232,101 (17,622,003\
$ 35,698,052 $ 39,11e,538 $ (1,003,796) $ 73,813,7e4

58,265,701 402,419 (58,668,120) 

-

_$_93,e63/99_ _$_9e, 52 1,e5?_ _$ (5e, 6? tqq _$_r3,8 1 3 /91-

Land
lnfrastructure
Buildings
Plant Machinery and Equipment
Office Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles and Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Construction in Progress

Land
lnfrastructure
Buildings
Plant Machinery and Equipment
Office Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles and Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Construction in Progress

Balance
1t1t2014

Balance
1213112014Additions Deletions

$ 61,132 $ - $ $ 61,132
33,502,793 33,502,793
10,159,726 5,500 - 10,165,226
7,993,262 17,096 (54,375) 7,955,983

127,306 20,470 (3,985) 143,791
1,100,324 421,970 (168,000) 1,354,294

$ 52,944,543 $ 465,036 $ (226,360) $ 53,183,219
(1 6,378,1 70) (1 ,323,547\ 21 6,550 (17 ,485,167)

$ 36,566,373 $ (858,511) $ (e,810) $ 35,6e8,052
56,523,141 1,742,560 

- 

58,265,701
$ 93,089,514 $ 884,049 $ (9,810) $ 93,963,753

fn calendar year 2015, the Authority contracted for and completed an updated appraisal of the acquisition
cost of all of its plant assets as a result of significant plant expansion and renovation over the past 7
years. As a result of this updated appraisal, asset categories as shown on the statement of next position,
in some instances, changed significantly from calendar year 2014 to calendar year 2015 as a result of
capitalizing prior year construction in progress. This updated appraisal determined that certain prior year
assets (structures and equipment) had been completely renovated or replaced and accordingly had to be
removed from the Authority's cost value for its property, plant and equipment. The corresponding
reduction is reflected as part of the Authority's prior period adjustments as stated on the statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Depreciation expense increased significantly in
calendar year 2015 as a result of the additional capitalization on assets formerly shown as construction in
progress.
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NOTE 4- LONG.TERM DEBT

SEWER REVENUE BONDS - SERIES OF 2OO9

In December of 2009, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2009 under the
terms of a Trust Indenture dated December 1, 2009, by and between the Authority and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount of $10,000,000. The purpose of the bond issue
was for 1) the design and construction of capital projects, 2) acquisition of facilities required for proper
operation and maintenance of the Authority wastewater conveyance and treatment system, 3) funding a
debt service reserve fund, and 4) paying the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in
denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15 at rates ranging
between 3.0 and 5.75%. The bonds provide for early redemption options as detailed in the official
statement of issue. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15. 2039.

SEWER REVENUE BONDS - SERIES OF 2O1O

fn December of 2010, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2010 under the
terms of a Trust lndenture dated December 28,2010, by and between the Authority and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount of $25,000,000. The purpose of the bond issue
was for 1) the design and construction of capital projects,2) funding a debt service reserve fund, and 3)
pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in denominations of $5,000 with interest
payable semi-annuallyJune 15 and December 15 at rates ranging between 2.0 and 5.16%. The bonds
provide for early redemption options as detailed in the official statement of issue. The bonds are
schedufed to mature December 15,2040.

SEWER REVENUE BONDS - SERIES OF 2011

fn August of 2011, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2011 underthe
terms of a Trust lndenture dated August 31, 2011, by and between the Authority and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount of $26,180,000. The purpose of the bond issue
was for 1) prepaying certain outstanding loans (capital leases) between the City of McKeesport and the
Authority, 2) funding a debt service reserve fund, and 3) pay the costs of issuance on the bonds. The
bonds were issued in denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and
December 15 at rates ranging between 1.25 and 5.00%. The bonds provide for early redemption options
as detailed in the official statement of issue. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15.2030.

SEWER REVENUE BONDS - SERIES OF 2012

fn January of 2012, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2012 under the
terms of a Trust Indenture dated January 5,20'12, by and between the Authority and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount of $5,990,000. The purpose of the bond issue
was for 1) currently refunding the Authority's outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2006, and 2)
paying the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in denominations of $5,000 with
interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15 at rates ranging between 1.00 and 3.00%. The
bonds provide for early redemption options as detailed in the official statement of issue. The bonds are
scheduled to mature December 15.2036.
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NOTE 4- LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

SEWER REVENUE BONDS _ SERIES BOF 2012

fn July of 2012, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series B of 2012 under the
terms of a Trust Indenture dated August 23, 2012, by and between the Authority and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount of $4,650,000. The purpose of the bond issue
was for 1) advance refunding a portion of the Authority's outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of
2008 and 2) paying the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in denominations of
$5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15 at rates ranging between 1.00 and
3.45o/o. The bonds provide for early redemption options as detailed in the official statement of issue. The
bonds are scheduled to mature December 15,2033.

SEWER REVENUE BONDS - SERIES OF 2013

fn January of 2013, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2013 under the
terms of a Trust Indenture dated January 16, 2013, by and between the Authority and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount of $13,715,000. The purpose of the bond issue
was for 1) advance refunding a portion of the Authority's outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of
2010, 2) advance refunding a portion of the Authority's outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series of
2011, and 3) paying the costs of issuance on the bonds. The bonds were issued in denominations of
$5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and December 15 at an interest rate of 4.00%. The
bonds provide for early redemption options as detailed in the official statement of issue. The bonds are
schedufed to mature December 15,2041.

SEWER REVENUE BONDS - SERIES OF 2014

f n January of 2014, the Authority issued Tax-Exempt Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2014 under the
terms of a Trust Indenture dated February 19, 2014, by and between the Authority and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee, in the amount of $6,410,000. The purpose of the bond issue
was for 1) currently refunding the Authority's outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series of 2008, 2) fund
construction and/or acquisition of capital additions, and 3) paying the costs of issuance on the bonds.
The bonds were issued in denominations of $5,000 with interest payable semi-annually June 15 and
December 15 at interest rates ranging between 1.0o/o and 4.65%. The bonds provide for early redemption
options as detailed in the official statement of issue. The bonds are scheduled to mature December 15,
2039.
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NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The following summarizes the Authority's bond debt service obligations of the Authority as of December 31,
2015:

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2040

2041

2009
Principal

$ 185,000
190,000
200,000
210,000
220,000

1,270,000
1,635,000
2,165,000
3,415,000

2010
Principal

$ 25,ooo
45,000
65,000
85,000

1 15,000
955,000
800,000

3,325,000
6,775,000

2011
Principal

$ 1,085,000
1,110,000
1,145,000
1,190,000
1,230,000
7,015,000
8,810,000

2012
Principal

$ 190,000
190,000
195,000
200,000
200,000

1,1 15,000
1,315,000
1,600,000

360,000

Year

Year
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2040

2041

Interest Total-5- 3s?4s4r -F-sfe-4s41-
3,538,754
3,492,388
3,431,244
3,071,193

14,125,841
11,369,231
8,197,875
3,935,075

193,900

5,108,754
5,132,388
5,151,244
4,876,193

24,685,841
25,079,231
25,197,875
24,815,075
4,648,900

$ 4,635,000 $ 13,715,000 $ 6,305,000 $ 54,930,142 $ 129,790,142

DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS AND BOND PREMIUMS

The bond discounts in connection with the Authority's currently outstanding bond issues totaled $1,466,506.
This amount is being amortized on a straightline basis over the life of the bond issues and is charged as a
component of interest expense in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. The
unamortized amount of bond discount at December 31 , 2015 and 2014 totaling $1 ,292,670 and $1 ,231 ,845
respectively, is reflected in Exhibit A as a reduction in 'bonds payable - long-term portion'. The amount of
discount charged to interest expense was $60,825 and $59,469 tor 2015 and2014 respectively.

- 

1'570'ooo--
_$_9, 4e0,999_ _$_1_9, ?60,999_ _$_2 1, 58 5, ggg_ _$_5, 3 6 5,ggg_

20128
Principal

$ s,ooo
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000

25,000
25,000

4,560,000

2013
Principal

2,895,00;
7,93s,000
2,885,000

2014
Principal

$ eo,ooo
30,000
30,000
30,000
35,000

180,000
1,125,000
2,450,000
2,395,000
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NOTE 4- LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS AND BOND PREMIUMS (Continued)

The bond premium in connection with the Series of 2011 Sewer Revenue Bonds was $816,328. This
amount is being accreted on a straight-line basis over the life of the bond issue and is credited as a
component of interest expense in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. The
un-accreted amount of bond premium was $630,148 and $673,113 for at December 31,2015 and2014
respectively, and is reflected in Exhibit A as an addition to 'bonds payable - long-term portion'. The amount
of premium credited to interest expense was $42,965 for 2015 and2014.

fn connection with the issuance of Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series B of 2012 and Series of 2013, the
Authority entered into irrevocable trust agreements with the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company to
purchase U.S. Govemment Securities in an amount sufficient to fully service a portion of the Series of 2008,
Series of 2010, and Series of 2011 Sewer Revenue Bond lssue debt as they mature or are called. For
financial reporting purposes, these bonds are considered defeased and therefore removed as a liability form
the Authority's financial statements.

The difference between the defeased debt and the reacquisition price (amount deposited with escrow agent
for refunding purposes) totaling $1,627,427 , is considered 'deferred interest' and is being amortized over the
fife of the new bond issue. The annual amortization of this deferred interest was $62,150 for 2014 and
2015, and is reflected as a component of interest expense in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position (Exhibit B). The unamortized amount of deferred interest at December 31, 2014
and December 31, 2015 totaling $1,512,821 and $1 ,450,671 respectively is reflected in Exhibit A as
'Defened Outflows of Resources'.

SEWER REVENUE NOTE - SERIES OF 2011

fn June of 2011, the Authority issued Sewer Revenue Note - Series of 2011 to PNC Bank in the amount
of $5,000,000. The Note was subsequently amended in December of 2011 to increase the amount to
$10,000,000. The purpose of the Note was to pay for the costs of the Authority's Waste Water Treatment
Plant (WWTP) expansion costs in advance of receiving permanent financing from the Pennsylvania
Infrastructure Investment Authority (see Note 11). The Note bears interest at a variable rate (currently
2.6250/o) equalto 75o/oof the Bank's Prime Rate. As of December31,2015, the outstanding balance on
this Note obligation is $148,962.

PENNVEST

On January 5, 2012, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) awarded the
Authority a grant of $17,239,375 and an additional amount of $17,239,375 in the form of a 30 year loan at
1% interest to cover the general and electrical contracts for the wastewater treatment facility at 100
Atlantic Ave. in McKeesport, PA. The Authority has drawn down $15,015,205 on the loan as of December
31, 2015. The terms of the note agreement call for the cunent monthly payment of $55,448.63 at an interest
rate of 1. The note is scheduled to mature in November of 2038. The note is secured by the gross receipts
of the Authority.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2015 AND 2014

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Gontinued)

PENNVEST (Continued)

fn November of 2015, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) entered into an
assumption agreement with the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport to assume the outstanding
balance of an existing PENNVEST loan held by the City of McKeesport in the amount of $2,O51,467.42.
The terms of the note agreement call for the monthly payment of $17,780.19 at an interest rate of 1.690/o

scheduled to mature on May 1, 2026. The note is secured by the gross receipts of the Authority and
guaranteed by the City of McKeesport.

fn November of 2015, the Pennsylvania lnfrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) entered into an
assumption agreement with the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport to assume the outstanding
balance of an existing PENNVEST loan held by the City of McKeesport in the amount of $1,132,795.66.
The terms of the note agreement call for the monthly payment of $8,223.11 at an interest rate of 1.065%
scheduled to mature on February 1,2028. The note is secured by the gross receipts of the Authority and
guaranteed by the City of McKeesport.

FIRST COMMONWEALTH BANK

ln September of 2015, the Authority entered into a promissory note agreement with First Commonwealth
Bank for the purchase of a 2015 Chevrolet Cutaway for $21,650. The terms of the note call for 2 annual
payments of $11 ,312.28 at an annual interest rate of 2.94%. The lease is scheduled to expire in
September of 2017.

The following summarizes the remaining debt service obligation of the Authority on the PENNVEST and
First Commonwealth Note obligations as of December 31,2015:

2012 2015
Principal Principal

Dec31 PENNVEST PENNVEST
2016 $ s31,936 $ 180,337
2017 537,170 183,408
2018 542,566 186,532
2019 548,017 189,709
2020 553,522 192,940

2021-2025 2,852,146 1,015,124
2026-2030 2,998,316 88,526
2031-2035 3,151,978
2036-2038 1,883,437

2015
Principal

FIRST
COMMONWEALTH
D "rp..10,825

:

2015
Principal

PENNVEST-5--?J14--
88,047
88,989
89,941
90,904

469,322
211,261

Interest
Total-5- 
18-eB-56-
180,598
159,336
149,756
140,057
550,523
331,518
174,940
57,265

$ 1,933,829$ 13,599,088 $ 2,036,576 $ 1,125,578 $ 21,6s0
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 4- LONG-TERM DEBT (Gontinued)

CAPITAL LEASE - PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE

f n November of 2012, the Authority entered into a capital lease agreement with PNC Equipment Finance
for the purchase of a Backhoe and a Dump Truck for $161 ,829. The terms of the lease call for 5 annual
payments of $33,854.24 al an annual interest rate ol 2.3o/o. The lease is scheduled to expire in
November of 2016.

CAPITAL LEASE - PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE

f n March oI 2014, the Authority entered into a capital lease agreement with PNC Equipment Finance for
the purchase of a 2014 Vactor Truck for $352,801. The terms of the lease call for 12 quarterly payments
of $30,242.80 at an annual interest rate of 2.8o/o. The lease is scheduled to expire in March of 2017.

CAPITAL LEASE - PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE

ln May of 2014, the Authority entered into a capital lease agreement with PNC Equipment Finance for the
purchase of a 2013 Chevrolet Silverado for $23,917. The terms of the lease call for 3 annual payments of
$8,309.51 at an annual interest rate of 2.1%. The lease is scheduled to expire in May ol 2017.

A schedule of the future minimum lease rental payments as of December 31, 2015 is as follows:

2012 2014 2014
PNC PNC PNC

Year Principal Principal Principal
2016 -F- $^oe3 -5-E -5-ll6J56-
2017 - 8.139 30.111

Balance
1t1t2015 Additions

$ 76,330,000 $ -

Balance Due Within One
Defetions 1213112015 Year-S(fi?s^o-odt -5- ?4"8s5"000 -5-re6I6'd'-
(2,070,366) 16,931,854 959,174

lnterest Total
$ 2,932 $

303
163,134
38,553

198,452 160,202
91,985,306 $ 2,639,376

Balance
1213112014

Due Within
One Year

$ 33,093 $ 16,110 $ 149,249 $ 3,235 $ 201,687

The foffowing represents the changes in the Authority's long-term debt obligations during 2015 and2O14:

Bonds
Notes
Capital Leases

Bonds
Note
Capital Leases

Balance
11112014

13,924,134 5,078,086
361 ,843 21 ,650 (18s,041)

_q_9q91_q,erz_ _$_s,oeeJgg_ _$ (3,?30,40a

Additions Deletions-5- z6ml0-0d- -S- 6/10.000 $ (7,050,000) $ 76,330,000 $ r,475,000
(997,536) 13,924,13413,788,859 1,132,811

't89,129 376,718 (204,004) 361,843 117.529
$ 90,947,988 $ 7,e1e,52e $ (8,2s1,540) $ 90,615,977 $ r,592,529

18



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 5 - LEASE RENTAL EXPENSE

On October 17,2008, the Authority entered into a lease purchase agreement with the City of McKeesport,
effective January 1, 2009, for the purchase of the City's sanitary collection system. In connection with that
agreement, the Authority agreed to also pay, on a monthly basis, the outstanding balance due on two (2)
loans the City has with the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) related to
improvements made to the collection system. ln November of 2015, the Authority entered into an
assumption agreement with PENNVEST to assume the balance of debt of the aforementioned PENNVEST
loans (Note 4). Accordingly, the outstanding balance as of the assumption date totaling $3,184,263 was
transfened to the Municipal Authority along with the related assets in that amount. During the calendar
years 2015 and 2014, the Authority reimbursed the City $260,192 and $312,491 respectively for these
PENNVEST loans.

NOTE 6 - ACCUMULATED COMPENSATED ABENCES

In accordance with the terms of the collective bargaining agreement between the Authority and the Utility
Workers Union of America, AFL-CIO, all regular full{ime employees are entitled to receive payrnent for the
value of all unused vacation days upon separation of service from the Authority at the employee's regular
daily rate. This practice also applies to administrative personnel not covered under the terms of the
bargaining agreement. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the value of accumulated compensated
absences totaled $164,351 and $148,297 respectively.

NOTE 7 - TRANSACTIONS WITH THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT

The Authority entered into an agreement with the City of McKeesport dated December 29, 1949, as
amended June 2, 1992, to provide sewage treatment services to the City and to pay the City $30,000
annually for the maintenance cost of the sewers located within the City. In addition, during 2008, the
Authority was responsible for paying the City a quarterly administrative fee, based on water usage, for the
City to bill and collect certain fees from its customers within the City. Effective February 1, 2009, the
Authority began billing and collecting these fees directly to the customers within the City of McKeesport. In
addition, the Authority paid the City of McKeesport $600,000 for the estimated value of collectible delinquent
sewage fees outstanding. This amount, less delinquent collections in 2015 and 2014, is reflected in the
statement of net position as 'Delinquent Sewage Service Receivable - City of McKeesport' totaling
$192,458.

NOTE 8 _ AUTHORITY PENSION PLAN

Plan Administration

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit
pension plan. The Plan was established March 1, 1964, as amended, to provide retirement benefits to
eligible employees of the Authority. The Plan is governed by the Board of Directors of the Municipal
Authority of the City of McKeesport which may amend plan provisions, and which is responsible for the
management of Plan assets.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2015 AND 2014

NOTE 8 -AUTHORIW PENSION PLAN (Gontinued)

Plan Membership

Plan membership as of December 31, 2015 was comprised of:

Active employees
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Terminated employees entitled to benefits

but not yet receiving them
Total

Plan Provisions

A summary of the plan's provisions is as follows:

48
16

1

PARTICIPANTS -

ELIGIBILITY.

VESTING -

BENEFITS -

DEATH BENEFIT -

FUNDING -

Deposits

At December31,2O15, the Plan held no deposits.

65

All employees whose customary employment with the Authority
is for at least 20 hours per week and 5 months per year.

All participants are eligible for retirement benefits provided that
they have attained the age of 62 and have completed 10 years
of continuous service. Participants are eligible for early
retirement at age 55 with 20 years of continuous service.

0% vested from zero to end of 10th year, 5Oo/o vested at end of
1Oth year, plus 5% vested for each additional year from 11h year
and over up to 100% vested.

The plan provides 50% of average compensation and short
service percentage for participant with less than 20 years of
service. The percentage of average compensation will increase
2oh for each year of service over 20 years to a maximum ol 80%
of average compensation with 35 or more years of service..

The plan provides 50% to the surviving spouse of the Accrued
Benefit if active death occurs after attainment of age 55 or 20
years of service. For all other vested participants, 50% to the
surviving spouse of a 5oo/o Joint & Survivor benefit beginning no
earlier than when the deceased participant would have attained
age 55.

Members were required to contribute 4o/o of compensation for
2015. No contributions are required after Normal Retirement
Date.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2015 AND 2014

NOTE I - AUTHORIW PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Investments

The Plan is authorized to invest in legal investments permitted under the Pennsylvania Fiduciaries
Investment Act. The Plan's target asset allocation and long-term expected real rate of return for each
asset class is as follows:

Expected Real

Asset Class Target Percentage Rate of Return

Domestic Equity

International Equity

Domestic Bonds

Real Estate

50.0o/o

L0.0%

22s%

17.5%

7.5%

8.s%

2.5%

4.5%

Net Pension Liability

The components of the net pension liability at December 31,2015 are as follows:

Total pension liability $ 8,466,740
Plan fiduciary net position 6.696.871
Net pension liability $l-769J09

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1,2015 and rolled
forward to the reporting date using the following significant actuarial assumptions applied to all periods
included in the measurement:

Actuarial assum ptions:

lnflation: 2.75%
Salary increases: 10oh lor the first 3 years and 4o/o thereafter
Mortality: RP-2000 Health Annuitant with full generational projections for future

improvements by scale BB2D.
Expected Long-Term
Rate of Return: 7.35%, applied to all periods

The Authority selected this rate based on return expectations of its retirement
Plan investment advisors and the investment allocation guidelines as described
in the Plan's Investment Policy Statement.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.35oh.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 8 - AUTHORITY PENSION PLAN (Gontinued)

The following shows the changes in the Total Pension Liability (TPL), the Plan Fiduciary Net Position
(fair vaf ue of plan assets), and the Net Pension Liability (NPL) as of the Measurement date (1213112014):

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

tiability Net Position tiability
(a) (b) (c)

Bafances arlzlStlL4

Changes for the year:

Service cost
lnterest

Changes of benefits
Changes of assumptions

Differences between expected
and actual experience

Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Market value investment income

Transfers

Benefit payments

Admin istrative expense

Other changes

Net changes

Bafances atLzlSLlLs

Total pension liability
Plan fiduciary net position

Net pension liability

(122,388) (122,388)

(413,s48)

(s2,4ss)

(1s2,743l'

(350,308)

492,607 298,438 194,169

5 a,qaaJ+0 S 6,696,87L 5 LtAg,sSg

S 7,974,t33

375,9I9
599,384

S o,Ega,+ss

4L3,548

92,455
752,743_

(360,308)

5 L,s75,700

375,9L9

599,384

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Changes in the discount rate affect the measurement of the TPL. Lower discount rates produce a higher
TPL and higher discount rates produce a lower TPL. Because the discount rate does not affect the
measurement of assets, the percentage change in the NPL can be very significant for a relatively small
change in the discount rate. The following shows the sensitivity of the NPL to the discount rate with two
additional measures, plus and minus one percent from the rate used for the disclosure.

1% Decrease

16.!s%l
s s,s3s,641

6,696,977

_5 2,838,??0

Current
Discount Rate

17.!s%l
5 8,466,740

6,696,871

1% Increase

(8.3s%)

5 7,569,379

6,696,87r

S 1,769,869 S B72,sog
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORIW OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2015 AND 2014

NOTE I - AUTHORITY PENSION PLAN (Gontinued)

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to Pensions

At December 31, 2015, the Plan reported the following deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pension from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected
and actual experience

Changes of assumptions
Net difference between
projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 257,434

5 2s7,434 S 113,04s

Amounts reported as defened outflows of resources and deferred inflow of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

December 31,

2OL6 5 55,0L6

S S 113,04s

2077

2078
2079

2020

55,016

55,016

55,014

(9,343)

Thereafter (66,330)

NOTE 9. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport provides post-employment medical benefits to eligible full-
time non-bargaining employees and members covered under the Collective Bargaining Agreement between
the Authority and the Utility Workers Union of America (AFL-C|O). Healthcare coverage that an employee
has at the time of retirement will be paid at retirement, but no earlier than age 62. The healthcare coverage
wiff cease at the employees age of 65. In calendar year 2O14, two union retirees were receiving post-
retirement health care benefits from the Authority. The Authority finances these benefits on a pay-as-you-go
basis. Amounts paid for these benefits for the year ended December 31,2014 were deemed immaterial.

On January 1,2012, the Authority adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 45, 'Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment
Benefits Other Than Pensions'. This statement provides the accounting and reporting requirements for
benefit plans, as well as, requires that public sector employers accrue the cost of any postretirement
healthcare or similar benefits (OPEB) they may offer to employees.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2015 AND 2014

NOTE 9 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION (Continued)

Under GASB Statement No. 45, retiree benefits are viewed as a form of deferred compensation. As
such, the benefits are treated as being earned over the working lifetime of the employee so that the cost
is fully charged to operations by the earliest date of eligibility under the plan.

The Annual OPEB and Net Pension Obligation for the years ending December 31,2015 and December 31,
2014, and certain other required supplementary information as of January 1,2015 is as follows:

2015 2014
Normal Cost

Amortization of Unfunded Accrued Liability
Annual Required Contribution (ARC)

Interest on Net OPEB Obligation
Adjustments to ARC

Annual OPEB Cost

Contributions Made ( Estimated)
Estimated Increase in Net OPEB Obligation
Net OPEB Obligation - January 1-,

Net OPEB Obligation - December 31,

s 179,943
(47,352l.

s 132,591

24,7U

208,005
(28,856)

195,464

L6,374

156,695 195,464
(718)

156,595

602,595

194,746

Q7,U9

_s ?59,290_ _s 602,595_

FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the health care cost trend. Actuarial amounts determined regarding the funded
status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the Authority are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

The schedule of funding progress, as shown below, presents multi-year trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities
for benefits.

(A)

ACTUARIAL ACTUARIAL
VALUATION VALUEOF

DATE ASSETS

(B) (B-A) (ArB)
(UAAL)

UNFUNDEO
ACTUARIAL ACTUARIAL
ACCRUED ACCRUED FUNDED
LIABILITY LIABILIW RATIO

(c) (B-Ayc

UAAL AS A
' "/"OF

COVERED COVERED
PAYROLL PAYROLL

1t1t12 $
1t1t15 $

- $ 931,894 $
- $ 883,003 $

931,894 0%
883,003 0%

$ 2,028,488 45.900/o

$ 2,546,260 34.70%
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 9 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHERTHAN PENSION (Continued)

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed
to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The January 1,2015 actuarialvaluation reports utilized the EntryAge Normal CostActuarial Cost Method.
The UAAL is being amortized based on a level dollar, 20 year closed period resulting in an amortization
factor of 17 .14. The Discount Rate used was 4.0%. The health care cost trend rate which is 7.5% for 2015,
decreases by approximately .5% to 4o/o in 2064 and thereafter.

A detail description of the provisions of the post-employment benefit plan is available in the GASB 45
actuariaf vaf uation report as of January 1,2015. The Net OPEB liability as of December 31, 2015 and 2014
is of $759,290 and $602,595 respectively is reflected as part of Noncurrent Liabilities in the financial
statement of net position (Exhibit A).

NOTE 10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

LEGAL MATTERS

Several Authorities and/or Municipalities for which the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport
provides sewage treatment service have threatened to file legal action against the Authority and/or the City
of McKeesport to challenge the validity or legality of City of McKeesport Ordinance No. 12-20 which
imposes a fee upon the Authority in the amount of $1,000,000 (with annual % increases) for municipal
services provide by the City of McKeesport to the Authority (See Note 1 1). Currently, only two of the
referenced Authorities and/or Municipalities have initiated legal action regarding this matter and it would not
appear that there would be any adverse action against the Authority as a result of this litigation.

fn October ol2O15, the Liberty Mutual Insurance Company filed an action against the Municipal Authority of
the City of McKeesport seeking damages in excess of $5,000,000. Liberty Mutual is the bonding company
for one of the former contractors of the Authority who participated in the Authority's renovation to its sewage
treatment facilities. The Authority denies all claims by Liberty Mutual and management is optimistic that the
litigation will have a favorable outcome.

On December 11, 2014, the Allegheny County Health Department filed a 'notice of appeal' of the Municipal
Authority of the City of McKeesport for alleged violations of the Pennsylvania Clean Streams Law, Health
Department rules and regulations, and provisions of the NPDES permit issued to the Authority in April of
2008. The Allegheny County Health Department had forwarded a proposed Consent Assessment of Civil
Penalty to the Authority in December of 2015 for $140,750, however this demand for civil penalties was
recentfy lowered by the Health Department in April of 2016 to $50,000 with the provision that the Authority
sign the Consent Assessment and pay this amount by May 31,2016. In the event of noncompliance by the
Authority, the Health Department will proceed with the litigation and seek civil penalties against the Authority
in an amount that could approximate $600,000. The accompanying financial statements do not include a
provision or liability for any of the above referenced amounts.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

PENNSYLVANTASEWAGE FACtLtTtES ACT (ACT 537)

Act 537 requires municipalities in Pennsylvania to develop and implement official sewage plans that address
existing sewage disposal needs, account for future land development and provide for future sewage
disposal needs. During 2009 and 2010, the Authority worked with the PA Department of Environmental
Protection to develop its Act 537 Sewage Facility Plan and Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) Long Term
Control Plan. ln 2011 fifteen separate contracts were awarded for construction projects related to these
Plans. These Plans require significant new treatment processes, pumping stations and interceptor lines
with an associated capital cost of approximately $63 million.

To finance the project, the Authority has chosen to issue a series of bonds (see Note 4) ata rate of one
per year, thereby enabling the Authority to step the necessary sewage rate increases over the next four to
five years as opposed to a significant rate increase in any one year. ln 2011 Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority (PENNVEST) awarded the Authority a grant of $17,239,375 and an additional
amount of $17,239,375 in the form of a 30 year loan at 1% interest. The award was issued only for
Contract 2010-1 and 2010-2 which covers the general and electrical contracts for the wastewater
treatment facility at 100 Atlantic Ave. in McKeesport, PA. All unused funds will be retained by
PENNVEST. The other 13 contracts are financed by the previously mentioned bond issues. The project
is 99% complete, just awaiting project close out, final payments, and then a complete system flow
monitoring study to make sure the project achieves the 85% capture of combined sewer overflows.

u.s. ARMY CORPS OF ENGTNEERS (COE)

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (COE) is undergoing a project to raise the water level in the
Monongahela River which will significantly impact the Authority's Combine Sewer Overflow (CSO) outfall
structures. As a result, the federal government is funding the relocation of most of the CSO structures.
Construction for Phase 1 of the project was completed in 2007. Phase ll began in the second half of
2009 and was completed in the first half of 2011. The Evans Avenue Overflow Line is the only remaining
line that needs to be raised, however, the COE do not have any funds allocated for this line at this time.
The Authority now has new outfall structures that will greatly reduce the amount of river water that flows
back through the pipes and into the sewer lines. This, in return, will reduce the costs associated with
treating unnecessary water.

NOTE 11 - OBLIGATIONS IMPOSED UPON THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF
MCKEESPORT BY CITY OF MCKEESPORT ORDINANCE NO. 12.20. ENACTED OCTOBER 3. 2012.
WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF OCTOBER 6.2012

Pursuant to City of McKeesport Ordinance No. 12-20, enacted into law by the City of McKeesport on
October 3, 2012, with an effective date of October 6, 2012, The Municipal Authority of the City of
McKeesport is required to pay the City of McKeesport an Intergovernmental Agreement Fee in lieu of the
normal property and revenue assessments and to compensate the City of McKeesport for all services and
increased costs the location and expansion of the Authority's treatment plant have caused at a rate of
$1,000,000 per year and with The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport to enter into and execute
a Cooperation Agreement with the City of McKeesport according to the terms approved by the Solicitor
and Mayor of the City of McKeesport and specifically incorporating such lntergovernmental Agreement
Fee.

26



THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2015 AND 2014

WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF OCTOBER 6.2012 (Gontinued)

Such Cooperation Agreement was thereafter prepared by the City of McKeesport; dated December 12,
2012; and entered into and executed by The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport. Such
Cooperation Agreement requires The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport to pay on or before
December 25th of each year a $1,000,000 Intergovernmental Agreement Fee for the initial year and with
such Authority payment to be increased by 1% for each year thereafter during the term of the
Cooperation Agreement. In addition, the payment of this fee is specifically subordinated each year to the
payment of all debt service obligations. Services include, but are not limited to: Drafting services for
mapping system, Permits for sewer taps and relays, Engineering services, Procurement of right-of-ways
and easements, Surveying services, Use of specialized equipment owned by City, Police, Fire, and
Ambulance services, Electrical department services, and many other services rendered as stated in
Agreement. The Authority paid the City of McKeesport an Intergovernmental Agreement Fee of
$1,030,301 and$1,020,100respectivelyforcalendaryearsendedDecember31,2015and2014.

NOTE 12 - PENDING GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

fn February of 2015, the GovernmentAccounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.72,'Fair
Value Measurement and Application'. The primary objective of this Statement is to clarify the definition of
fair value, establish general principles for measuring fair value and enhances disclosure about fair value
measurements. The provisions of this Statement are effective for the Authority's December 31, 2016
financial statements.

fn June of 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 76, 'The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for State and Local Govemments'. The primary objective of this Statement is to reduce the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP from
the four categories under GASB Statement No. 55. The provisions of this Statement are effective for the
Authority's Decem ber 31, 201 6 fi nancial statements.

NOTE 13 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS/RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Effective January 1, 2015, the Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport implemented Govemment
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 68, which require the accounting for unfunded
pension liability for the Authority's pension plan (Note 8). Accordingly, the Authority's net position as of
January 1,2015 was restated asfollows:
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NOTE 13 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS/RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued)

NET POSfTTON AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED t2l3vt4

NET PENSION LIABILITY (Measurement Date 72/3L/20L41

DEFERRED lN FLOWS ( Measurement Date L2 / 3I / 20141

DEFERRED oUTFLOWS (Measurement Date t2 I 37 / 20L41

TOTAL PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

NET POSTION AS RESTATED JANUARY 1, 2015

s 1s,442,934

1L,575,700],

(1,s75,700)

$ 13,867,234

In addition to the restatement of net position of ($1,575,000) as explained above, the Authority updated the
net historical cost value of its inventory of capital assets during calendar year 2015 as a result of substantial
upgrades to its treatment plant facilities over the past several years. Based on information obtained from
the Authority's contracted independent appraisal company, the results of that updated appraisal report
resulted in a prior period adjustment of ($22,615,001) to the net book value of the Authority's property, plant
and equipment as ofJanuary 1,2015.

NOTE 14 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Municipal Authority of the City of McKeesport Authority purchased the Port Vue Collection system in
April of 2016 for $1,400,000 with an upfront payment of $300,000 due at closing and ten annual
payments of $110,000 through 2026. The Authority will now be responsible for billing the Port Vue
customers and collecting the payments directly, and also to maintain the collection system, which
includes both sanitary and storm lines and one pump station.

Management has determined that there are no additional events subsequent to December 31,2015
through the date of the 'lndependent Auditor's Report' date, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued, that require additional disclosure in the financial statements.
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION TIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (RSI}

20t5

Total Pension Liability-Beginning

Service Cost

lnterest
Changes of Benefit Terms

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience

Changes of Assumptions

Benefit payments, including Refunds of Members Contributions
Net Change in Total Pension Liability

Total Pension Liability-Ending

Plan Fiduciary Net Position-Beginning

Contributions-employer
Contributions-em ployee

Net Investment Income

Benefit payments, including Refunds of Employee Contributions
Administrative Expense

Other

Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position-Ending

Net Pension Liability-Ending

RATIOS:

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a

Percentage of Total Pension Liability

Covered-em ployee Payroll

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage

of Covered-employee Payroll

NOTE: Schedule requires information for past 10 calendar years.

information for calendar year 2015 only.

7,974,733

375,979

599,384

(L22,3881

(360,30;)

492.607

8,466,740

6,398,433

413,548

92,455
'1,52,743

(360,308)

298,438

6,696,877

L,769,869

79.10%

2,434,978

72.69%
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORIW OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT

SCHEDUTE OF ACTUARILTAY DETERMINED PENSION CONTRIBUTION AND RETATED

REqUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (RSI)

tzl3uz0ts r2l3tl20L4 t2l3rl20t3 t2l}Ll2Or2 t2l3tl2OtL

Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contributions

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

RATIOS:

Covered-em ployee Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered-em ployee Payroll

Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contributions

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

RATIOS:

Covered-em ployee Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered-em ployee Payroll

S 2,434,978 S

1.6.98%

L2lstl2OtO

5 40,052

40,052

s

2,487,363 S

13.71%

t2l3tl2OO8

2,408,246 s

72.85%

L2l3Ll2Oo7

473,678

413,548

355,795 S

3s5,796

34L,096

341,095

309,525

309,s2s

220,395

318,960

50,070 s (98,565)

2,449,452 s

t4.53%

2,067,3I3

L5.47%

t2l3Ll2006

t7,202

t7,202

7,766

7,766

83,326

83,326

98,910

IO7.884

-s (8,974)

5 'J.,788,077 
S t,442,97O

t.L9%

5 t,3t8,2tz S 977,660 S

8.58%

1,053,399

to.7s%2.24%
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THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

REQUIRED SUPPLEM ENTARY INFORMATION

ACTUARIAL
VALUATION

DATE

ACTUARIAL
VALUE

OF ASSETS

ACTUARIAL
ACCRUED
LIABILITY

UNFUNDED
ACTUARIAL
ACCRUED
LIABILITY

FUNDED
RATIO

COVERED
PAYROLL

UAAL AS
AoloOF

COVERED
PAYROLL

1t1t2013 $

11112015

4,469,879

5,852,268

$ 6,843,691

7,836,039

$ 2,373,812

1,983,771

$2,551,011

2,591,874

65.0%

75.0o/o

93j%

765%
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Unless otheruise specified, the following actuarial methods and assumptions were used in the calculation
of actuarially determined contributions reported in the required supplementary schedules:

Actuarial Valuation Date - January 1, 2015

Actuarial cost method: EntryAge Normal

Amortization method: Level Dollar Closed

Remaining amortizatron period. 4-20

Assetvaluatron method. 4-yearsmoothing

Inflation: 2.75%

salary increases: 10%forthe first 3 years and 4% thereafter
Investment rate of return: 7.5% per annum, gross return
Mortality: Pre-retrrement - none assumed

Post-retirement - RP-2000 Health Annuitant with full
generational projections for future improvement by

scale B82D

Post-disablement - RP-2000 Disabilrty Table

Retirement Age: Later of age 62 wrth 10 years of service or January 1, 2015

Changes to Ecnefits
Effective March 1, 2007, certain retirees were granted a one-time cost-of+vrng increase to therr pensron.

Effective January 1, 2008, the benefit formula was improved by ehminating the "Accrued Benefrt

AdJustment" and increasing the accrual over 20 years from l%to 2% (and thus IncreaseinB the maximum

accrual form 55% to 80%.

Effective June 23, 2009, the pre-retirement death benefit was expanded to provide erther an immedrate
or deferred annurty to the survrving spouse of a vested participant.

Changcs to Assumptions

Effective January 1, 2007, the valuation Interest rate was raised form 7.5%to8.O%.

Effective January l, 2008, a provision was added to rncrease employee contributrons from a flat 2.5% up to
2 75% or ?.OO% dependrng on the MMO for the year.

Effective January 1, 2009, the mortality assumptron was updated from 1983 GAM to RP-2000 by Scale M.
The asset valuation method was changed from market value to a frve-year average of investment

Sains/fosseswithan8O%/L2cy'corrtdoraroundmarketvalue. TheAuthorityelectedtoextendthe
cotridot toTl%/tl1%for the lh/2009 valuation as permitted by Act 44 of 2009.

Effective January 1, 2013, the mortality assumption was changed from statrc to full generational In order

to anticipate future mortahty rmprovements.

Effective January 1, 2014, the employee contributron rate was Increased from 3.0% to 3.5%, and the Late

Retirement benefit was changed to the accrued benefrt under the Plan's formula without any other
adjustment.

Fall2OL4' fu level 2 Distressed Munrcrpality (as defined in Act 205) the Authority elected the "Amortrzation
Contributions Reduction Remedy" whereby they may deposit less than the full Minimum Municipal

Obhgation (MMO) for years 2015, 2016, a d 2017.

Effectrve January 1, 2015, the employee contflbution rate was increased from 3.5% to 4.0%.

Effectrve January 1, 2015, the projected mortality improvement assumptions was updated, the salary

Increase assumption was decreased to better reflect anticipated future pay increases, and the investment
return assumptron was lowered to 7.50% to better reflect future return on plan assets.
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SCHEDULE 1

THE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MCKEESPORT
STATEMENT OF DETAIL OPERATING EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.

2015
PERSONNEL COSTS

Plant Salaries
Administrative Salaries
Payroll Taxes
Pension
Employee Benefits

TOTAL PERSONNEL

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Engineering (Net of COE Reimbursements)
Audit
Legal
Accounting
Pension Services
Payroll Services
Miscellaneous Professional Services

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

SEWAGE PI-ANT COSTS
Utilities
Repair and Maintenance
Lease Rental Expense
Chemicals
Lab Supplies and Analysis
Safety Program
Vehicle Expense
Sludge Hauling
Computers
Uniforms
CSO Study
Miscellaneous

TOTAL SEWAGE PLANT COSTS

OTHER GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
lnsurance
Office Supplies
Telephone
Billing and Collecting
Travel and Education
Advertising
Bond and Asset Management Fees
Permits/Dues/Fees
Miscellaneous

TOTAL OTHER GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

BAD DEBT EXPENSE

DEPRECIATION
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

2014

$ 1,944,197 $ 1,898,677
615,062 692,021

909,276 882,403
$ 4,126,408 $ 4,023,979

$ 49,971 $ 25,510
6,845 6,500

175,157 144,051
5,721 4,800

27,244 31,370
7,119 7,230

56,702 36,031

$ 328,759 $ 255,492

$ 732,188 $ 542,529
238,540 226,992

194,555
463,318

260,192
60,011

198,702
352,176

312,491
67,601

39,341
16,430

50,940 48,900
11,598
87,769

250,830
45,401
9,767

89,510 73,480
15,211 9,909

$ 1,789,156 $ 1,687,267

40,476
97,810

157,232
35,274
11,772

$ 114,808 $
16,519

115,143
3,396

37,70Q 33,722
160,321 117,813

19,081 14,061
3.099 184
3,218

18,566
18,728 35,356

$ 392,040 $ 375,446

230,865 $ 287.214

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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